NRC FORM 591M U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

(04-2022)

Materials Inspection Report

1. Licensee/Location Inspected: 2. NRC/Regional Office

BP Products North America, Inc. Region llI

2815 Indianapolis Boulevard U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Whiting, IN 46394 2443 Warrenville Road, Suite 210

Lisle, IL 60532-4352

Report Number(s) 2022-001

3. Docket Number(s) 4. License Number(s) 5. Date(s) of Inspection
030-04326 13-00155-12 October 25, 2022
LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective
examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings
are as follows:

1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
|:| 2. Previous violation(s) closed.

|:| 3. During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements, and
were assessed at Severity Level 1V, in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy.

A. The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-
identified, non-repetitive, corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy
were satisfied.
(Non-cited violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s)

B. The following violation(s) is/are being cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION,
which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions

| hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of corrective
actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, date when full
compliance will be achieved). | understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.

TITLE PRINTED NAME SIGNATURE AND DATE
LICENSEE'S
REPRESENTATIVE
NRC INSPECTOR | Ryan Craffey P (e Dot 202 11100812936 0500
BRANCH CHIEF Michael Kunowski Michael A. Kunowski Digtally igned by Wichao! A Kunowsid
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NRC FORM 592M U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
(10-2020)

Materials Inspection Record

1. Licensee Name: 2, Docket Number(s): 3. License Number(s)

BP Products North America, Inc. 030-04326 13-00155-12

4. Report Number(s): 5. Date(s) of Inspection:

2022-001 October 25, 2022

6. Inspector(s): 7. Program Code(s): 8. Priority: 9. Inspection Guidance Used:
Ryan Craffey 03120 5 IP 87124

10. Licensee Contact Name(s): 11. Licensee E-mail Address: 12. Licensee Telephone Number(s):

Matthew Sorrells - RSO matthew.sorrells@bp.com 219-370-8089

13. Inspection Type: |:| Initial 14. Locations Inspected: 15. Next Inspection Date (MM/DD/YYYY):

Routine Announced Main Office |:| Field Office 10/25/2027 Normal |:| Extended
|:| Non-Routine |:| Unannounced |:| Temporary Job Site |:| Remote |:| Reduced |:| No change

16. Scope and Observations:

BP Products North America operates the Whiting Refinery, 1,400-acre complex across Whiting, Hammond, and East
Chicago, Indiana, that produces liquid fuels, petroleum coke, and asphalt from up to 440,000 barrels of crude oil per
day. These refining operations involved the use of fixed nuclear gauges containing licensed material to measure
level, density, weight, and profile of various products in process equipment. At the time of the inspection, the
licensee had over 40 licensed devices in use across the complex; all contained single sources of Cs-137 with the
exception of four Tracerco Profiler devices, each of which contained 95 individual sources of Am-241 to approximate
a line source for density profile measurements in product separator tanks. A warehouse in Hammond on the western
edge of the complex was occasionally used for interim storage of incoming licensed material. The licensee's Senior
Industrial Hygienist served as RSO with support from an assistant RSO, and was authorized for non-routine
maintenance limited to mounting, dismounting, relocation, and initial radiation surveys.

The inspector toured several areas of the complex in Whiting (no material was currently in storage at the Hammond
location). All areas were adequately posted and all licensed material in these areas was adequately secured and
accounted for. The licensee continued to maintain security barriers as needed to ensure against aggregation of a
category 2 quantity of material. The inspector evaluated the condition and use of over half of the licensee's devices,
including all four Tracerco Profilers. Each device was adequately labeled and in good condition. Independent and
confirmatory surveys found no unusual readings in the vicinity of these devices, nor any readings above limits to the
public in unrestricted areas. The licensee's survey meter was calibrated within the last year and responded
accurately to the radiation fields present. The inspector discussed the conduct of routine and non-routine
maintenance with personnel, as well as their preparations for response to abnormal conditions.

The inspector reviewed records for recent semiannual inventories, leak tests and shutter checks, as well as records
of the receipt, installation and commissioning of the Tracerco Profiler devices. The inspector also reviewed the
licensee's lockout/tagout procedures and radiation safety training materials.

No violations of NRC requirements were identified as a result of this inspection.

Note: At the time of the inspection, IRISNDT (030-38777) and TEAM Industrial Services (030-35252) dispatched
several industrial radiography crews each from their field offices in Hammond to BP Whiting daily. In addition to
testing installed process equipment across the complex, crews from TEAM performed call-out work several times a
day at the refinery's central maintenance shop to test fabricated equipment prior to installation. Radiographers
returned from each assignment to a parking lot on the north end of the complex, near Gate 42.
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